
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
February 3, 2014 

Morrell Meeting Room 
Curtis Memorial Library 

23 Pleasant Street 
 
Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Roll Call  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Correspondence:   
 
Council Committee Updates  
  
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
a) Update from People Plus 
b) Report from Brunswick Public Art 
c) Introduction of Linda Smith, Business Development Manager 
d) Update on the Kate Furbish Dam Removal grant   
e) Update on Town Hall project 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
10. The Town Council will hear public comments on Zoning Ordinance amendments relative 

to the Village Review Board membership, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager) 

PUBLIC HEARING/ACTION 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
11. The Town Council will hear a report from the Chair of the Recreation Commission 

regarding the results of a citizen survey to help establish priorities for future development 
of outdoor aquatic facilities within the community, and take any appropriate action.  
(Manager) 

ACTION 
 
12. The Town Council will consider supporting a letter of intent for a CDBG grant for 

MRRA to assist with the “Make It In America” grant they recently received, and will take 
any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

ACTION 
 



2 
 

13. The Town Council will consider applying for a Land for Maine’s Future Grant to address 
public access needs in upper Woodward Cove, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Councilor Walker) 

ACTION 
 
14. The Town Council Chair will make an appointment to the Restoration Advisory Board, 

and will take any appropriate action. (Chair Pols) 
ACTION 

 
15. The Town Council will discuss the method to select a firm to conduct the Town Manager 

search, and will take any appropriate action. (Chair Pols and Councilor Brayman) 
ACTION 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of January 21, 2014 
b) Approval of the Minutes of December 23, 2013 

 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 
 
  



3 
 

 
Brunswick Town Council 

Agenda  
February 3, 2014 

Council Notes and Suggested Motions 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE UPDATES 
 
Council Committee updates will be done after correspondence.  Councilors with information on 
the Committees they are involved with will share information with the Council and public. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
a) Update from People Plus:  Stacy Frizzle, Executive Director, will briefly update the Council 

on activities of People Plus.  Frank Connors will also present Councilors with a copy of his 
book, “Frankly Speaking,” which is a compilation of his columns from the People Plus 
Newsletter.  

 
Suggested motion:  No action is required. 

 
b) Report from Brunswick Public Art:  Susan Weems and Rob Jarrett, representing this group, 

will update the Council and the public on their fund raising efforts and current public art 
projects in the community.  Copies of supporting materials are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion:  No action is required. 

 
c) Introduction of Linda Smith, Business Development Manager:  This item is to introduce Ms. 

Smith to the Council and the public. 
 

Suggested motion:  No action is required. 
 
d) Update on the Kate Furbish Dam Removal grant:  Previously, the Council approved working 

with Maine Coast Heritage Trust (MCHT) on the Kate Furbish restoration project and 
applying to the Maine Natural Resources Conservation Program (MNRCP) for funding.  That 
funding in the amount of $136,000 was approved at the January 15, 2014, MNRCP board 
meeting.   The funds will be used to address the failed impoundment, erosion, and invasive 
species in the southwestern portion of the Preserve.  As MCHT was the lead applicant, the 
funds will be going to MCHT, and they will be coordinating project permitting, contracting, 
and construction oversight for the town, in close consultation with Town staff.   Dan 
Devereaux will provide this update to the Council and public.  Copies of a memo from 
Officer Devereaux and photos of the area are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion:  No action is required. 

 
e) Update on Town Hall project: This item will be an update on the progress of the new Town 

Hall.  Copies of a memo from Manager Brown and budget information are included in your 
packet. 

 



4 
 

Suggested motion:  No action is required. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
10. This item is to hear public comments on Zoning Ordinance amendments relative to the 

Village Review Board membership.  Since your last meeting when you set the public 
hearing, the Planning Board held a public hearing on the proposed zoning amendment to 
amend Section 216.5 B. to add a new subsection 5 authorizing the Planning Board to act 
on pending Certificates of Appropriateness if, due to Board vacancies, a quorum of the 
Village Review Board cannot be achieved within the required timeframe of 30 days.  The 
Board then took action to unanimously recommend the proposed amendment to the Town 
Council for their consideration.  Copies of Ms. Breinich’s memo and the draft language 
are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt Zoning Ordinance amendments relative to the Village Review Board 
membership. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
11. This report from the Recreation Commission will detail the results of a citizen survey to 

determine the level of community support for developing a new outdoor aquatic facility 
for the Town that would replace Coffin Pond. The Town Council previously authorized 
an expenditure of $25,000 from the Special Revenue Fund for Recreation Programs for 
the purpose for conducting a full feasibility study for this project. To complete a revised 
feasibility study scope, the Commission is requesting authorization from the Town 
Council for permission to expend an additional $3,700 from the Special Revenue Fund 
for a total project sum not to exceed $28,700. Copies of a memo from the Recreation 
Commission Chair and the proposed resolution are in your packets.  The survey results 
are provided under separate cover. 

 
Suggested motion:   
To adopt a resolution supplementing a previous resolution pertaining to the use of Special 
Revenue Funds for Recreation Programs to fund a feasibility study for an outdoor aquatic 
facility.  

 
12. The Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority (MRRA) is requesting a Letter of 

Intent (LOI) from the Town of Brunswick to submit to the Department of Economic and 
Community Development’s Office of Community Development for $250,000 from the 
Community Development Block Grant program to provide funding as match for the U.S. 
Department of Labor’s “Make It In America” grant award.  Linda Smith and MRRA staff 
will be available to answer any questions.  Copies of a memo from Ms. Smith and the 
draft Letter of Intent are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to support a letter of intent for a CDBG grant for MRRA to assist with the “Make 
It In America” grant. 

 



5 
 

13. This item, sponsored by Councilor Walker, seeks Council permission to allow the Town 
to apply for funds to support this project.  The funding will provide an opportunity to 
purchase 21 acres of property to provide public access at Woodward Cove.  The Town 
submitted to the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration’s Coastal and 
Estuarine Land Conservation Program in November for 50% of the funds necessary for 
acquisition.  The Land for Maine’s Future (LMF) request would be for the remaining 
50% of funding needed.   Officer Devereaux will be present to answer any questions.  
Copies of a memo from Officer Devereaux and maps are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to give permission for the Town to apply for a Land For Maine’s Future Program 
grant to address public access needs in upper Woodward Cove. 

 
14. This item allows the Town Council Chair to fill the vacancy on the Restoration Advisory 

Board created by Suzanne Johnson’s resignation.  In the past, it appears that the Town’s 
position on this board was appointed by the Town Manager, but Chair Pols would like to 
make this appointment as he has for other boards.  Ms. Johnson has recommended that 
David Page be considered for this appointment.  Copies of a previous appointment letter 
from Manager Gerrish, a letter from Ms. Johnson and Mr. Page’s qualifications are 
included in your packet.  

 
Suggested motion:  
No motion, since Chair Pols will make this appointment. 

 
15. This item is sponsored by Council leadership in order to determine the method to select a 

firm to conduct the Town Manager search.  Firms contacted to provide proposals have 
until February 6th to submit them so they can be provided to the Council prior to your 
February 10th workshop. 

 
Suggested motion:  No motion is required. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a) Approval of the Minutes of January 21, 2014:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 

packet. 
b) Approval of the Minutes of December 23, 2013:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 

packet. 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adjourn the meeting 

 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 











 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



TO: BENET POLS, CHAIR BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL AND MEMBERS OF THE BRUNSWICK TOWN 
COUNCIL; GARY BROWN, TOWN MANAGER 

FROM: DAN DEVEREAUX, MARINE RESOURCE OFFICER/HARBOR MASTER  

SUBJECT: UPDATE REGARDING APPLICATION TO MAINE NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION PROGRAM  

DATE: JANUARY 29, 2014 

CC: TOM FARRELL, DIRECTOR OF PARKS AND RECREATION; ANNA BRIENICH, DIRECTOR OF 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT; JOHN FOSTER, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 

Chair Pols and members of the Brunswick Town Council: 
 
On January 15, 2014 the Approval Committee of the Maine Natural Resource Conservation Program 
(MNRCP) unanimously approved the $136,000 request submitted by Maine Coast Heritage Trust in 
partnership with the Town of Brunswick to address the failed impoundment, erosion, and invasive species in 
the southwestern portion of Brunswick’s Kate Furbish Preserve. 
 
Project Background 
 
At its June 17, 2013 meeting the Brunswick Town Council voted to adopt the Recreation, Trails 
and Open Space (RTOS) Management Plan for the Kate Furbish Preserve.  Key recommendations of this 
plan included applying to MNRCP for funds to restore natural stream conditions and tidal regime to a 
partially failed impoundment in the southwestern portion of the Preserve; and to treat a stand of invasive 
common reed (Phragmites australis) within the salt marsh at the head of Harpswell Cove.  Both tasks are 
intended to enhance the ecological functions of the property and benefit local marine resources.  
 
Grant Source 
 
MNRCP is a source of funding for wetland restoration and conservation projects administered for the Maine 
Department of Environmental Protection and US Army Corps of Engineers by the Maine Chapter of the 
Nature Conservancy.  Monies available through this fund come from development permit requirements for 
wetland mitigation.  When a developer impacts a wetland resource, rather than having to delay their project 
until an off-site wetland restoration project is found, they pay into a fund in lieu of mitigation.  This process 
streamlines permitting and results in significant wetland restoration and conservation by pooling funds from 
multiple projects.  No local match is required to apply for funding support. 
 
Proposed Project 
 
As proposed, MCHT will coordinate efforts to remove the remains of an earthern dam in the former survival 
training area, re-grade and replant disturbed areas, treat the common reed stand, and address areas of erosion 
along the perimeter leading to the work site.  MCHT is currently working with a local environmental engineer 
to complete restoration design, permitting, and assist with construction oversight and long-term monitoring 
of the project.  Ideally, construction would begin during frozen ground conditions.  MCHT is coordinating 
site access with MRRA and Parks and Recreation Staff.  Completing this work prior to town investments for 
public access trails will avoid costly repairs to trail surfaces and will likely facilitate future trail construction 



given that construction equipment necessary for dam removal will be traversing proposed trail routes and 
could help to prepare surfaces of former perimeter roads now overgrown with vegetation.  MCHT is in the 
process of securing necessary US Army Corps of Engineers and Maine Department of Environmental 
Protection Permits. 
   
Local Commitment 
 
No local match (monetary or in kind) is required for this funding source.  Given the partnership working on 
this project, we anticipate that limited staff time will be required for the project.  MCHT is acting as the fiscal 
agent and grant administrator for the project.  Moving forward town staff including representatives from the 
Department of Public Works, Parks and Recreation, and Marine Resources will be consulted in the review of 
design plans, construction dates, site work and project reporting. 



Dam Location

Earthen Berm Upstream Impoundment Salt Marsh Below Impoundment

Phragmites Stand

Kate Furbish Preserve Wetland Restoration Project

Legend
Kate Furbish Preserve



 
Intentionally left blank 



 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Brunswick Council    
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager 
  
DATE:  January 29, 2014  
  
RE: Progress report on the Town Office renovations        
  
 
The renovations at the new Town Office continue to make progress. The Council sub-
committee toured the facility on January 28 and were pleased with the progress. 
Councilor Watson will provide the Council with an update at the February 3 Council 
meeting. 
 
The construction budget has required 22 change orders, three resulting in credits, and 
19 requiring additional costs. A spreadsheet that identifies the change orders is 
enclosed. 
 
In addition to the construction change orders, the project has also had additional costs. 
These costs include new chairs for the Council Chamber, shelving for the Clerk’s vault 
and the installation of a security system for the building.  The totals for these items are 
$30,528. The net balance is a deficit of just under $23,000. Upon completion of the 
project, the Council will be asked to fund the deficit either by a supplemental 
appropriation of transfer of funds from  
 
I have previously informed the Council that Bowdoin College had agreed to increase 
their contribution to the back-up generator. The increase is from their annual 
contribution to the Town. The total that the College is contributing for the generator is 
$81,000. The cost of the generator is $91,619. The balance ($10,619) is funded from 
the project contingency.  

 



Brunswick Town Hall
  JOB # 1323     CP LIST

1/28/2014 8:57 AM
Page  1

CP # Description Pending / 
Proceed Initiated/caused by:  CP Written CO # Amount Running Total

1 Adjust $500 Allowance to purchase card 
access cards

Proceed Allowance - in contract
-$                    

2 Adjust $2800 Allowance to furnish & install 
vault door

Proceed Allowance - in contract
-$                    

3 Adjust $1500 Allowance for interior signage Proceed Allowance - in contract -$                    
4R Furnish and install generator Pending Alternate #1 taken $        91,619.00 91,619.00$          
5 Added carpet & vinyl base Proceed Owner request $          8,154.00 99,773.00$          
6 Add cost of electrical permit Canceled $                     -   99,773.00$          
7 Revised NC fixtures Approved Design/Fixture revision $             181.00 99,954.00$          

8
Added carpet & vinyl base to Storage rooms Pending TOB request

 $          2,596.00 102,550.00$        
9 Added carpet & vinyl to corridor Pending TOB request $             908.00 103,458.00$        

10
Raise water service piping council chambers Completed Exist. cond. - Chamber 

ceiling height  $          2,341.00 105,799.00$        

11 Re-frame Council wall for existing skewed 
conditions

Completed Existing condition 
 $          1,289.00 107,088.00$        

12 Enclosure for gas main Room 118 Pending Existing condition $             162.00 107,250.00$        

13
Soffit across Council Chambers Pending Exist. cond. - Chamber 

ceiling height  $          1,125.00 108,375.00$        
14 Re locate ductwork in Council chambers In process Existing condition 108,375.00$        
15 B-2 Millwork changes - adjustability / ADA Pending Owner request $          7,218.00 115,593.00$        
16 Picture rail reductions Pending Scope change $            (634.00) 114,959.00$        

17 Change side fed linear diffusers to top 
rectangular diffusers, eliminate re-framing

Pending Existing condition 
114,959.00$        

18 Carpet to tile in Tax & Lobby Pending Owner request 114,959.00$        
19R Additional data lines Pending Pending $          2,994.00 117,953.00$        

20
Credit for under carpet wiring changed to 
trenched conduit

Pending Owner request
 $         (1,430.00) 116,523.00$        

21
Credit for 4" conduit deleted from project Pending Owner request

 $         (1,143.00) 115,380.00$        

22
Trim Council chamber window, existing trim 
unsalvageable.

Pending Existing condition 
 $          1,190.00 116,570.00$        

116,570.00$        

116,570.00$        

116,570.00$        
TOTALS $      116,570.00 -$                               116,570.00$        



Brunswick Town Hall
  JOB # 1323     CP LIST

1/28/2014 8:57 AM
Page  2

CP # Description Pending / 
Proceed Initiated/caused by:  CP Written CO # Amount Running Total

Contract GMP $      903,263.00 
Plus net Change Orders $                     -   
Plus CP's written, but not yet C. O.'s $      116,570.00 

$   1,019,833.00 

5% Contingency $        43,192.00 
Contribution to Generator $        81,000.00 
Total available $      124,192.00 
Current value of known CP's outstanding $      116,570.00 
Contingency remaining $          7,622.00 



 
 

 
ITEM 10 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

 

INCORPORATED 1739 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
28 FEDERAL STREET 
BRUNSWICK, ME  04011 

 

 
 

 

ANNA M. BREINICH, AICP PHONE: 207-725-6660 
DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT FAX: 207-725-6663 

 

 

 
January 30, 2014 

 
 

Memo to: Brunswick Town Council 
  Gary Brown, Town Manager   
From:  Anna Breinich, AICP 
Subject: Public Hearing for Proposed Amendment to Brunswick Zoning Ordinance, Section 216, Village 

Review Zone  
 
As you know, Town Council recently amended its appointments policy for Town Boards, Commissions and 
Committees.  The amended policy more clearly addresses position vacancies (Section 15), in particular for the 
Board of Assessment Review, Marine Resources Committee, Planning Board, Village Review Board and Zoning 
Board of Appeals, stating that if a member’s term has expired, the position will be considered vacant as of the 
date the term expires.  In the past, members of a Board, Commission or Committee have been able to continue 
serving until either that person was reappointed or a new member was appointed by Council. 
 
Until earlier this month, for almost a year, the Village Review Board (VRB) has had only 4 members, the 
ordinance-required quorum.  Full membership is 7 members.  With the amended appointments policy, the Board 
was down to 3 members, one short of the ordinance-required quorum of 4 members, and could not meet to 
conduct business.   
 
The Planning Board held a public hearing on the attached zoning amendment to amend Section 216.5 B. to add a 
new subsection 5 authorizing the Planning Board to act on pending Certificates of Appropriateness if, due to 
Board vacancies, a quorum of the Village Review Board cannot be achieved within the required timeframe of 30 
days.  The Board then took action to unanimously recommend the proposed amendment to Town Council for their 
consideration.   
 
With recent Council appointments to the Village Review Board, the immediate need for this amendment is 
lessened.  However staff concurs with Planning Board’s recommendation to favorably consider the amendment so 
as to avoid a similar situation in the future.    
 
I will be in attendance at your meeting for further discussion and/or questions. 
 
 
Attachment 



 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO BRUNSWICK ZONING ORDINANCE 

SECTION 216 VILLAGE REVIEW ZONE (VRZ) 
As recommended by the Brunswick Planning Board to Town Council on January 28, 2014 

 
       

216.5 Certificate of Appropriateness 
 

A. A Certificate of Appropriateness is required for any of the following activities in the 
Village Review Zone involving contributing resources or, if visible from a public 
right-of-way, noncontributing resources: 

 
1. Construction of a new structure. 
2. Addition to an existing structure.
3. Alteration to the exterior appearance of any structure with the exception of in-

kind replacement of windows, facades and building ornamentation, normal 
maintenance and painting.  This includes, but is not limited to, any construction 
requiring a building permit, the construction of fences, changes in windows or 
façade materials, or the elimination or addition of any ornamentation.   

  

4. Relocation of any structure, or portions thereof.
5. Demolition of any structure or portions thereof.

  

6. Construction, installation or alteration of any sign, with the exception of 
directional signage less than three square feet in size. 

  

 
B. The power to grant a Certificate of Appropriateness for new construction, additions, 

alterations, relocations and demolitions under this Section is vested in the Village 
Review Board; however that power is hereby delegated in accordance with the 
following provisions:  

 
1. The Director of Planning and Development shall have the power to grant a 

Certificate of Appropriateness in cases where, in her/his judgment, the impact of 
the proposed activities will be minor, as defined in Section 216.8(B)(1) herein, 
and in keeping with the review standards of the Ordinance. 

2. The Director of Planning and Development shall regularly apprise the Village 
Review Board of Certificates of Appropriateness granted in accordance with 
subparagraph 1. 

3. Notwithstanding the authority delegated to the Director of Planning and 
Development, the applicant and the Village Review Board Chair each has the 
right to require review of an application by the Village Review Board. 

4. The Director of Planning and Development may find proposed changes to an 
approved Certificate of Appropriateness to be a minor modification, in which 
case approval by the Village Review Board shall not be required. 

4.5. In the event vacancies exist on the Village Review Board such that a 
quorum cannot be achieved to permit the Village Review Board to act on a 
pending or new application for a Certificate of Appropriateness, the 
Brunswick Planning Board shall act as the Village Review Board and shall 
hear and decide any such pending or new application, applying the criteria 
set forth in this Section 216.  To the extent the applicant is also required to 
seek development review from the Planning Board in accordance with 
Chapter 4 of this Ordinance, the Planning Board shall hear the application 
for a Certificate of Appropriateness together with such development 
review.  The Village Review Board shall hear and decide new applications 
filed after vacancies on the Village Review Board are filled such that a 
quorum can be achieved.        

 



  
C. If a structure or property has been damaged by fire, flood, storm or other disaster, 

and emergency temporary repairs or partial demolition are required in order to 
protect health or safety, or to prevent further damage to the structure or property, the 
Codes Enforcement Officer may waive temporarily the requirements of this Section 
for a Certificate of Appropriateness and issue a building permit for such emergency 
temporary repairs, including partial demolition.  No later than 30 days after the 
issuance of the permit, the permit applicant must apply for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness for the repairs or demolition already made and/or any planned 
permanent repairs or additional demolition work that requires a Certificate of 
Appropriateness under Section 216.5. A. 

 
 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 11 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 

 

TO:  Brunswick Town Council 

FR:  Jeff Ward, Chairperson, Brunswick Recreation Commission    

DT:  January 29, 2014 

RE:  Outdoor Aquatic Feasibility Survey 

 

Attached are the results of the feasibility survey conducted by Leisure Vision/ETC Institute regarding the 

community’s interest in building an outdoor pool in Brunswick, their preference as to the location for a 

pool, and the components they most desire in such a facility.   

 

Commission Vice‐Chair, Kristi Hatrick, Director Tom Farrell, and I also had the opportunity to review the 

survey results with Ron Vine, the head of Leisure Vision. 

 

There is a lot of information contained in the report.  After reviewing the report and speaking with Mr. 

Vine, Commissioner Hatrick and I believe that these are the key findings: 

 

 The community is very supportive of locating a pool adjacent to the new Recreation Center 

on the former Naval Base. 

 There is significant support in community for building a new outdoor pool. 

 Community use of a new pool would be dramatically higher than the current use of Coffin 

Pond.  The projected increase in use is most significant with teens and seniors. 

 There is community support for a bond issue to support the construction of the pool 

although it is unclear whether there is sufficient support for the size of a bond that would be 

required to finance the entire construction of the facility. 

 

We have asked to be placed on your agenda to publicly present the survey and discuss the results.  The 

Commission believes that these results are very informative and encouraging.  As such, we will be asking 

for your permission to proceed with the next phase which will produce a conceptual design, a projected 

project cost, and the anticipated annual operating cost. In order to complete the feasibility study, we 

need the Council to approve an additional $3,700 allocation from the Recreation Department Special 

Revenue Fund for Recreation Programs.  A resolution for this purpose is attached for your consideration. 

 

In addition, given the community support for locating the pool near the Recreation Center at 220 

Neptune Drive at Brunswick Landing, we would greatly appreciate your assistance in encouraging the 

Navy to expedite the environmental assessment of the land adjacent to the building.  

 

Thank you for your consideration. 

 



TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE TOWN COUNCIL 
 
 

RESOLUTION PERTAINING TO USE OF THE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND FOR 
RECREATION PROGRAMS FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDING OF A FEASIBILITY 

STUDY FOR AN OUTDOOR AQUATIC FACILITY 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Brunswick adopted on June 11, 1992 a resolution 
entitled "RESOLUTION REGARDING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A SPECIAL REVENUE 
FUND FOR RECREATION PROGRAMS" which was amended by a resolution dated August 4, 
1997 (the "Resolution"); and 
 
WHEREAS, during the FY 2010-2011 budget deliberations with the Brunswick Town Council, 
the Recreation Commission discussed the past performance and projected long range viability of 
continuing the operation of the Coffin Pond swimming area; and  
 
WHEREAS the Recreation Commission determined and recommended the need to obtain 
professional assistance from firms specializing in aquatic facility development to conduct a 
market analysis, develop a citizen input process, administer a random statistically valid survey to 
determine potential use levels and community support, identify facility programming, perform 
site analysis, project both capital and operations costs and corresponding revenues and provide 
conceptual drawings of a new aquatic facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 3, 2012, the Brunswick Town Council authorized the expenditure of 
funds from the Special Revenue Fund for Recreation Programs in an amount not to exceed 
$25,000 for the purpose of conducting a study to determine the feasibility of developing a new 
outdoor aquatic facility for the community, and 
 
WHEREAS, the structure and scope of the feasibility study have been revised, requiring the 
expenditure of an additional $3,700 to complete the study, and 
 
WHEREAS, based upon the completion of the first phase of the study, the Recreation 
Commission recommends proceeding with the next and final phases to complete the study, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council concurs with the recommendations of the Recreation 
Commission; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Brunswick Town Council authorizes the 
additional expenditure of $3,700 from the Special Revenue Fund for Recreation Programs in a 
total amount not to exceed $28,700 for the purpose of conducting a study to determine the 
feasibility of developing a new outdoor aquatic facility for the community. 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council – February 3, 2014 
Adopted by Town Council -  



 
 

 
ITEM 12 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



1 
 

 
 
Linda E. Smith 28 FEDERAL STREET 
Business Development Manager BRUNSWICK, ME  04011 
 TELEPHONE 207-721-0292 
 FAX # 207-725-6663 
 
 
TO:  Brunswick Town Council 
FROM: Linda Smith 
SUBJECT: Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority’s Request for Community 

Development Block Grant funds to support matching requirement for Make 
It In America grant 

DATE:  January 28, 2014 
 
The Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority (MRRA) is requesting a Letter of 
Intent (LOI) from the Town of Brunswick to submit to the Department of Economic and 
Community Development’s Office of Community Development for $250,000 from the 
Community Development Block Grant program to provide funding as match for the U.S. 
Department of Labor’s “Make IT In America” grant award.  
 
The Midcoast Regional Innovation Initiative (MRRA, Coastal Counties Workforce Inc., 
and Maine MEP) proposed via the Make it in America federal funding opportunity to 
accelerate Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), re-shore jobs, and expand manufacturing 
employment by establishing an advanced manufacturing and technology accelerator 
and providing workforce training and supply chain technical assistance within a 50-mile 
radius of the former Naval Air Station Brunswick. MRRA and the co-applicants were 
awarded the grant for their integrated multi-faceted strategy to: 
 
 Improve regional infrastructure by renovating a 93,000 square foot, former Navy 

maintenance/repair facility to create an advanced manufacturing accelerator, 
TechPlace, that targets four sectors with growth potential: aerospace/aviation, 
advanced materials/composites, renewable energy, and biotechnology;  
  

 Strengthen Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (SMEs) in the four targeted sectors 
by undertaking supply chain initiatives that better position regional manufacturers for 
growth opportunities; 

 
 Institute training programs to build a highly-skilled and diverse workforce capable of 

meeting employer demand in the four targeted technology sectors. 
 
To achieve these goals, MRRA is requesting $250,000 in Maine DECD funds to 
complete a $1.5 million renovation of Building 250 at Brunswick Landing: Maine’s 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
Incorporated 1739 

Economic and Community Development  
Department 



2 
 

Center for Innovation (formerly NASB).  The scope of work includes roof repair, HVAC 
system repair, general construction, Americans with Disabilities Act upgrades and 
compliance, National Fire Protection Act 101 Life Safety Code compliance, and Project 
Management. MRRA has secured $1,250,000 of the engineering estimates of 
$1,500,000 required for the scope of work completion.  EDP funds of $250,000 are 
requested no later than September 2014 and would be utilized to complete the scope 
of work items. MRRA and its Make it in America grant partners, anticipate the timely 
creation of 9 jobs. 
 
The draft Letter of Intent is attached for your reference. Steve Levesque, MRRA 
Executive Director, will be available at the February 3, 2014 Town Council meeting to 
answer any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment 
 
Cc: Gary Brown, Town Manager, Town of Brunswick 
       Steve Levesque, Executive Director, MRRA 
        



 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

1

State of Maine 
Community Development Block Grant Program 

2014 Economic Development Program 
Letter of Intent to Apply 

Due the first Friday of each month by 4:00 p.m.* 
Letters of Intent may be submitted via email to: ocd.loi@maine.gov 

Please enter “EDP LOI” in the subject line. 
 

2014 CDBG Program Funds are not expected to be available before July 1, 2014. 
 
All communities wishing to apply for assistance under the 2014 Economic Development Program must use this Letter of 
Intent to document compliance with requirements established by Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act 
of 1974, as amended and the State of Maine CDBG program. Applicants who submit a completed Letter of Intent deemed 
to be fully compliant will be notified by OCD that they are eligible to submit a final application.  Eligibility to submit a final 
application does not imply final project approval or funding. 
 
EDP PROJECT PARTICIPANTS 
 
Legal Applicant (Community): 
 
Applicant: Town of Brunswick Phone: 207-725-6659 

Address: 28 Federal Street Fax: 207-725-6663 

City, ZIP+4: Brunswick, ME 04011 E-Mail: gbrown@brunswickme.org 

Contact: Gary Brown, Town Manager 

DUNS #: Applicant DUNS (Dunn & Bradstreet) #:  077466274 
(visit www.nea.gov/grants/apply/DUNS.html if applicant needs to obtain a number) 

OCD Development Program Manager (Name and Date of Consultation Required): Deborah Johnson 
                                                                                                                 January 7, 2014 

 
Business to be assisted:  
 
Business  Midcoast Regional Redevelopment 

Authority 
Phone: 207-798-6512 

Address: 2 Pegasus Street, Suite 1 Unit 200 Fax: 207-798-6510 

City, ZIP: Brunswick, ME 04011 E-Mail: stevel@mrra.us 

Contact: Steve Levesque Title Executive Director 

DUNS #: Applicant Business DUNS (Dunn & Bradstreet) #: 808096304 
(visit www.nea.gov/grants/apply/DUNS.html if business needs to obtain a number) 

 
Is business to be assisted      Retail                              Start-up    

 
 

*If the first Friday of the month falls on a holiday the EDP Letter of Intent will be due by 4:00pm on the next 
business day. 
 



 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

2

EDP ELIGIBLE ACTIVITY CATEGORIES  
 

 
 
 
 

Grants to Municipalities:  
for acquisition, relocation,  demolition, clearance, construction,  
reconstruction, installation and rehabilitation associated with  public  
infrastructure projects such as water and sewer improvements,  
flood and drainage improvements, publicly-owned commercial                             $1,000,000 
and industrial buildings, parking, streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, etc.    
All public infrastructure must be owned by the municipality or public  
or private utility and be in support of an identified business.   

 Grants to Municipalities for Direct Business Support:   
for capital and non-capital equipment, land and site improvements,  
rehabilitation or construction of commercial or industrial buildings,                      $1,000,000  
job training, working capital and capital equipment and be in  
support of an identified business.  Acquisition is not an allowable  
activity under this group. 

 
Applicants may apply in only one specific grant activity group. 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM FUNDS CANNOT BE USED TO REFINANCE EXISTING 

DEBT 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
Using the space provided please provide a clear, concise description of the proposed development 
project.  Be sure to clearly explain how EDP funds will be utilized, the financing gap that exists in 
order to do the project and the timeline in which the CDBG-EDP funds will be expended and 
information relative to jobs being created and/or retained.   
 
The Midcoast Regional Innovation Initiative (MRRA, Coastal Counties Workforce Inc., and Maine MEP) proposed via the 
Make it in America federal funding opportunity to accelerate Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), re-shore jobs, and expand 
manufacturing employment by establishing an advanced manufacturing and technology accelerator and providing 
workforce training and supply chain technical assistance within a 50-mile radius of the former Naval Air Station Brunswick. 
MRRA and the co-applicants were awarded the grant for their integrated multi-faceted strategy to: 
 Improve regional infrastructure by renovating a 93,000 square foot, former Navy maintenance/repair facility to create 

an advanced manufacturing accelerator, TechPlace, that targets four sectors with growth potential: 
aerospace/aviation, advanced materials/composites, renewable energy, and biotechnology;   

 Strengthen Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (SMEs) in the four targeted sectors by undertaking supply chain 
initiatives that better position regional manufacturers for growth opportunities; 

 Institute training programs to build a highly-skilled and diverse workforce capable of meeting employer demand in the 
four targeted technology sectors. 

 
To achieve these goals, Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority (MRRA) is requesting $250,000 in Maine DECD 
funds to complete a $1.5 million renovation of Building 250 at Brunswick Landing: Maine’s Center for Innovation (formerly 
NASB).  The scope of work includes roof repair, HVAC system repair, general construction, Americans with Disabilities 
Act upgrades and compliance, National Fire Protection Act 101 Life Safety Code compliance, and Project Management. 
MRRA has secured $1,250,000 of the engineering estimates of $1,500,000 required for the scope of work completion.  
EDP funds of $250,000 are requested no later than September 2014 and would be utilized to complete the scope of work 
items. MRRA and its Make it in America grant partners, anticipate the timely creation of 9 jobs.   
 
The funding would support the effective reuse of a key property, while providing for low cost operational and 
manufacturing space, access to common services and equipment already located in the building and allow for business 
development and growth for emerging companies.    



 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

3

 
EDP DOLLARS PER JOB CREATED 
 

The maximum CDBG participation per job created with EDP funds is $30,000. 
 
JOB RETENTION INFORMATION (Fill in job information below) 
 

 
The applicant must also attach documentation to this Letter of Intent such as public announcement of 
lay-offs, public announcement of imminent closure, financial records) of impending job loss without 
CDBG Program assistance.  Completion of Job Retention Assurances and Job Retention 
Summary Documentation must be completed and submitted to the Office of Community 
Development before applicant will be invited to submit an EDP application.  Forms require 
completion and must be signed by both the municipal and business CEO.  Please pay close attention 
to the definition of permanent, full time and full time equivalent jobs.   
 
JOB CREATION INFORMATION (Fill in job information below) 

 
 

Occupation/Job Title # of 
Jobs 

Work 
 Location 

Hire  
Date 

Hourly  
Salary 

Hourly Salary with eligible 
fringe benefits 

Technician     5 TechPlace 12/15 $20.00                  $26.33 
Admin Support     4 TechPlace 12/15 $14.00                  $19.87 
      
      
      

 
In determining CDBG National Objective compliance with job retention only Permanent jobs may be 
counted; temporary jobs may not.  Full time jobs require a worker to work at least 1750 hours per 
year.  Part time jobs require a worker to work at least 875 hours but less than 1750 hours per year.  
Part-time jobs must be converted to Full Time Equivalents (FTE).  An FTE is defined as two part time 
jobs.  Seasonal jobs may count only if the seasonal job lasts long enough and provides sufficient 
income to be considered the employee's principal occupation.  (Contact OCD prior to counting 
seasonal jobs towards LMI benefit.)  All permanent jobs created by the project must be counted, 
regardless of funding source(s).  Jobs indirectly created by the project (i.e., remote location, “trickle 
down” jobs) do not count. 

 
G. COST ESTIMATES & PROJECT FUNDING 

 

Provide the estimated project cost, amount of CDBG funds to be requested and sources, amounts 
and dates secured for all anticipated cash matching funds.  
 

Applicants for Economic Development Program funds must certify and provide documentation, at 
time of application, that there is a 100% cash match of the total EDP award.  Matching funds must be 
directly related to the activities undertaken with EDP funding and must be firm commitments from 
non-CDBG funds and documented by binding commitment letters submitted with the final application.  
Prior commitments and in-kind contributions are not considered as match.  Project must demonstrate 
that there is a gap between sources and uses and that CDBG funds are needed to fill that gap. 

Number of Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs to be Retained: 

Number of Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs to be Created: 



 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

4

Communities receiving an EDP award may not receive any other EDP award for the same project or 
business during the same program year or for the same or project or business from a prior program 
year that has not met final closeout status.   
 

All construction estimates should be prepared by the Engineer/Architect.  Take into account the 
inflation rate in relation to the anticipated starting date of the project and applicable DAVIS/BACON 
wage rates as they apply to construction costs.  Please note projects with a total cost exceeding 
$3,000,000 are not eligible for EDP assistance. The minimum request for EDP assistance is 
$100,000*. 
 

Total Estimated Project Cost:   $ 1,500,000.00 CDBG Request:   $ 250,000.00 

 
Funding Source Amount Date Secured 

Economic Development Administration $ 750,000.00 September 25, 2013 
MRRA $ 250,000.00 October 31, 2013 
Brunswick Development Corporation $ 250,000.00 October 30, 2013 
   
   
   
   
   

TOTAL:   $ 1,250,000.00  
 
EDP PROJECTS IN SUPPORT OF RETAIL BUSINESSES  

 

EDP applications in support of a retail business must attach written documentation to 
this  Letter of Intent for each of the  following limited conditions: 
 
1. The retail business represents the provisions of new products and services previously 
unavailable in the community or is a tourism-related business; and 
 
2. The development or expansion of the retail business represents a net economic gain for the 
community and the region.  Applications supporting a retail business or businesses are required 
to certify that the development represents a new overall gain for the region economy and not a 
shift from existing established businesses to a new or expanded one; and 
 
3. The retail business is located in either a downtown district meeting the definition of PL 776 
enacted by the 119th legislature; or a designated local growth area contained in an adopted and 
consistent comprehensive plan; and 
 
4. At least 50% of the jobs created by the retail business must be full time jobs. 

 
*Projects seeking less than $100,000 in CDBG EDP funds must have received approval from 
the Office of Community Development prior to submission of the EDP Letter of Intent. 
 
 

Applicant & Business Certifications 
 
 



 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

5

As an authorized official of the applicant community and/or business, I certify under the 
penalties of perjury that: 
 

1.  To the best of my knowledge and belief, all information contained in this Letter of Intent 
and all attached documentation is true and correct and current as of the date signed below; 
 

2.  This Letter of Intent complies with all applicable State and federal laws and regulations; 
 

3.   Both parties signing this Letter of Intent are cognizant of the requirement that 
should the intended Job Creation/Retention National Objective of the CDBG program 
not be met all CDBG funds must be repaid to the State of Maine CDBG program;  
DECD may elect to secure such requirement/repayment with assets of the Applicant 
Business for a term of up to five years should this project be approved for funding; 
 
4.  Approval of this Letter of Intent by OCD to submit a final application does not imply final 
project approval or funding. 
 

Signature of Chief Executive Officer: 
 
 
 

Printed or Typed Name: 
 
Gary L. Brown 

Name of Applicant Community: 
 
Town of Brunswick 
 

Date: 

 
Signature of Chief Executive Officer: 
 
 
 

Printed or Typed Name: 
 
Steven H. Levesque 

Name of Applicant Business: 
 
Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority 
 

Date: 

 



 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

6

STATE OF MAINE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATION 
 

 
GRANTEE/BUSINESS ASSURANCES                             

                                                                        

JOB RETENTION 
                                                                        
           The Business ______________________________________(as identified below), having 

applied for funding from the Town/City of _____________________________ (as identified 
below) through the Maine assures that it has discussed job retention project goals with the 
applicant business.  The Municipality is assured that ______ jobs will be retained for a 
period of no less than two years from the date of the CDBG contract between the 
municipality and the State of Maine. The Business (as identified below) assures that these 
jobs will be retained and that timely and completed documentation will be provided to the 
Municipality necessary to verify job retention achievements.  Both the Municipality and the 
Business assure that low and moderate-income persons hold at least 51% of the jobs retained.            

            
In determining CDBG National Objective compliance with job retention only Permanent jobs 
may be counted; temporary jobs may not.  Full time jobs require a worker to work at least 1750 
hours per year.  Part time jobs require a worker to work at least 875 hours but less than 1750 
hours per year.  Part-time jobs must be converted to Full Time Equivalents (FTE).  An FTE is 
defined as two part time jobs.  Seasonal jobs may count only if the seasonal job lasts long 
enough and provides sufficient income to be considered the employee's principal occupation.  
(Contact OCD prior to counting seasonal jobs towards LMI benefit.)  All permanent jobs 
created by the project must be counted, regardless of funding source(s).  Jobs indirectly 
created by the project (i.e., remote location, “trickle down” jobs) do not count. 

             
All job retention information reported on this form will be reviewed by OCD. 

                                         
         
 Municipality 
                        
                                                   
           Signature of Municipal CEO                             Date 
 
       
 Business 
 
            
 Signature of Business CEO   Date 
 

The applicant must attach documentation to this form (such as public 
announcement of lay-offs, public announcement of imminent closure, financial 

records) of impending job loss without CDBG Program assistance. 
 
 



 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

7

 
STATE OF MAINE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATION 

 
 

JOB RETENTION SUMMARY DOCUMENTATION 
 

TO BE DETERMINED BY EMPLOYEE SURVEY AND VERIFIED THROUGH SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 

JOB TITLE   Job 
Class* 

#  JOBS RETAINED 
Qualified 

full              part          
time            time 

# LMI JOBS 
RETAINED 

full          part     
time        time   

# NON LMI JOBS  
RETAINED 

full            part 
time          time 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

All existing employees must be surveyed prior to making application to determine LMI status and 
establish an employment baseline for future reference. 

All job retention information reported on this form must be submitted for reviewed by OCD. 

* Attach a job description for each job title for which a position will be retained 
and use the job category definition numbers outlined below to indicate job class.         
 
The above information has been compiled using the individual surveys of all affected employees of the 
Business (as identified above). 
 
This survey was based on family income as defined by the HUD Low/Moderate Income Limits, which apply to 
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program.  To the best of my knowledge, all information 
represented above is true and factual.  Assurances are also given that “Clear and Objective” evidence exists 
documenting the above jobs would actually be lost without CDBG Program funding, and that this evidence 
exists in the form of a notice issued by the assisted party to affected employees, a public announcement, 
relevant financial records or other form acceptable to the Department of Economic and Community 
Development.   
 
        __________________________ 
Signature of Human Resources Officer   Date 



 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

8

 
 

JOB CATEGORY DEFINITIONS AND CLASS NUMBERS 
 
1. Officials and Managers – Occupants requiring administrative personnel who set broad policies, 

exercise overall responsibility of execution of these policies, and individual departments or special 
phases of a firm’s operations.  This includes: Officials, Executives, middle management, plant 
managers and superintendents, salaried supervisors who are members of management, 
purchasing agents and buyers, and kindred workers. 

 
2. Professional – Occupants requiring either college graduation or experience of such kind and 

amount as to provide a comparable background includes: accountants and auditors, airplane 
pilots and navigators, architects, artists, chemists, designers, dietitians, editors, engineers, 
lawyers, librarians, mathematicians, natural scientists, registered professional nurses, professional 
and labor relations workers, physical scientists, physicians, social scientists, teachers, and kindred 
workers. 

 
3. Technicians – Occupants requiring a combination of basic scientific knowledge and manual skill 

which can be obtained through about 2 years of post-high school education such as is offered in 
many technical institutions and junior colleges, or through equivalent on the job training.  This 
includes:  computer programmers and operators, drafters, engineering aides, junior engineers, 
mathematic aides, licensed practical or vocational nurses, photographers, radio operators, 
scientific assistants, surveyors, technical illustrators, technicians (medical, dental, electronic, 
physical science) and kindred workers. 

 
4. Sales – Occupants engaging wholly or primarily in direct selling.  This includes: advertising 

agenda and sales workers; insurance agents and brokers; real estate agents and brokers; sales 
workers, demonstrators and retail sales workers; and sales clerks, grocery clerks and cashiers; 
and kindred workers. 

 
5. Office and Clerical – Includes all clerical-type work regardless of level of difficulty, where the 

activities are predominantly non-manual though some manual work not directly involved with 
altering or transporting the products is included.  This includes: bookkeepers, cashiers, collectors 
(bills and accounts), messengers and office helpers, office machine operators, shipping and 
receiving clerks, stenographers, typists, and secretaries, telegraph and telephone operators, and 
kindred workers. 

 
6. Craft Worker (skilled) – Manual workers of relatively high level having a thorough and 

comprehensive knowledge of the processes involved in their work.  Exercise considerable 
independent judgment and usually receive an extensive period of training.  This includes:  the 
building trades, hourly paid supervisors and lead operators (who are not members of 
management), mechanic and repairers, skilled machining occupations, compositors and 
typesetters, electricians, engravers, job setters (metal), motion picture projectionists, pattern and 
model makers, stationary engineers, tailors, and kindred workers. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

9

 
STATE OF MAINE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
Economic Development Program Development Grant Application  

JOB CATEGORY DEFINITIONS AND CLASS NUMBERS 
(continued) 

 
 
 
7. Operatives (semi-skilled) – Workers who operate machines or other equipment or perform other 

factory-type duties of intermediate skill level which can be mastered in a few weeks and require 
only limited training.  This includes:  apprentices (auto mechanics, plumbers, electricians, 
machinists, mechanics, building trades, metal working trades, printing trades, etc.), operatives, 
attendants (auto service and parking), blasters, chauffeurs, delivery workers, dress makers and 
sewers (except factory), dryer’s furnaces workers, heaters (metal), laundry and dry cleaning 
operatives, milliners, mine operatives and laborers, motor operators, oilers and greasers (except 
auto), painters (except construction and maintenance), photographic process workers, boiler 
tenders, truck and tractor drivers, weavers (textile), welders and flame metals workers, and 
kindred workers.  

 
8. Laborers (unskilled) – Workers in manual occupations which generally require no special 

training perform elementary duties that may be learned in a few days and require the application 
of little or no independent judgment.  This includes: garage laborers; car washers and greasers; 
gardeners (except farm) and ground keepers; stevedores; wood choppers; laborers performing 
lifting, digging, mixing loading, and pulling operations; and kindred workers. 

 
9. Service workers – Workers in both protective and non-protective service occupations. This 

includes attendants (hospital and other institutions, professional and personal service, including 
nurses aides and orderlies), barbers, chair workers and cleaners, cooks (except household), 
counter and fountain workers, elevator operators, firefighters and fire protection guards, door 
keepers, stewards, janitors, police officers and detectives, porters, waiters and waitresses, and 
kindred workers. 

 
 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 13 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



TO: BENET POLS, CHAIR BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL AND MEMBERS OF THE BRUNSWICK TOWN 
COUNCIL; GARY BROWN, TOWN MANAGER 

FROM: DAN DEVEREAUX, MARINE RESOURCE OFFICER/HARBOR MASTER  

SUBJECT: APPLICATION TO LAND FOR MAINE’S FUTURE PROGRAM  

DATE: JANUARY 29, 2014 

CC: TOM FARRELL, DIRECTOR OF PARKS AND RECREATION; ANNA BRIENICH, DIRECTOR OF 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

 

Chair Pols and members of the Brunswick Town Council: 
 
Brunswick has an opportunity to receive funding to address public access needs in upper Woodward Cove.  
On behalf of a team of partners working to secure this funding, I request that you consider approving 
submission of an application to the Land for Maine’s Future Program (LMF).  I look forward to your 
feedback and will be happy to answer questions that you may have. 
 
Project Background 
 
This past September, I met with Brunswick-Topsham Land Trust (BTLT) and Maine Coast Heritage Trust 
(MCHT) to discuss water access needs in the context of the ongoing harbor management planning effort 
currently underway with the Marine Resources Committee.  At this meeting I identified Woodward Cove as a 
priority area needing secured public access particularly for shellfish harvesters.  In November 2013, the Town 
Council voted to approve submission of a funding request to the National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration’s Coastal and Estuarine Land Conservation Program.  We recently found out that the federal 
appropriations bill zeroed out funding for the program for 2014.  LMF water access funds seem to be a good 
fit as our next approach to protecting this property. 
  
Grant Source 
 
LMF is a competitive funding source administered through Maine’s Department of Agriculture, 
Conservation, and Forestry (DACF).  MCHT recently met with DACF staff to present the project which was 
received enthusiastically.  As proposed, the town of Brunswick would be the applicant for 50% of the fair 
market value of the parcel (LMF requires a 1:1 match).  MCHT has agreed to assist by preparing the 
application and pursuing necessary sources of match. 
 
Proposed Project 
 
The site consists of a 21-acre property in east Brunswick located on Route 24.  Aside from the potential to 
secure walk-in access and perhaps hand-carry boat access to upper Woodward Cove, the parcel includes 
significant saltmarsh and upland forest allowing for a variety of recreational uses.  A small off-street gravel 
parking area currently exists, but will require improvements to facilitate future access needs.  LMF does 
include funding opportunities for future access amenities.  The property is currently assessed at $48,000 and 
MCHT is working with the owner (Unitarian Universalist Church of Brunswick) to complete appraisal work. 
 



 
Local Commitment 
 
LMF will only fund 50% of total project costs based on fair market appraised value.  MCHT and BTLT are 
confident that the remaining 50% of the funds necessary can be secured through sources such as the Maine 
Outdoor Heritage Fund, the Maine Natural Resources Conservation Program, and perhaps other smaller 
sources. 



2014 CELCP Proposal - Woodward Cove Preserve, Brunswick

480 0 480240 Feet

Legend
Project Area
Approximate Access Trail
Potential Parking Area



2014 CELCP Proposal - Woodward Cove Preserve, Brunswick

1,500 0 1,500750 Feet

Legend
Project Area



 
 

 
ITEM 14 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 

























































 
 

 
ITEM 15 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
Draft 

BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 
Minutes 

January 21, 2014 
7:00 P.M.  

Morrell Meeting Room 
Curtis Memorial Library 

23 Pleasant Street 
 

Councilors Present: Chair Benet Pols, W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, 
John M. Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, 
and John Richardson, Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager; Elin M. Gould, 

Deputy Town Clerk; John Eldridge, Finance Director; Anna Breinich, 
Director of Planning and Development; Dan Devereaux, Marine 
Warden; Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Pols called the meeting to order, led the Pledge of Allegiance, and asked the Clerk for 
Roll Call.  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Amy Waterman and Marilee Tiemann announced the events planned for the tenth 
anniversary of Longfellow Days and this year’s theme of the Civil War and Longfellow’s 
connection to it.   
 
Ed Cowan, owner of Sunshine Too Laundromat at Cooks Corner, asked questions and 
commented about operating costs at the McLellan Building, the type of background needed for 
the new Town Manager, and the Cooks Corner connector road. 
 
Correspondence:   
 
Councilor Watson commended Max Finkle, a Bowdoin student, for organizing a veteran’s 
commemorative event at the upcoming Bowdoin hockey game as a fundraiser for the Wounded 
Warrior project.  Chair Pols added information about the event. 
 
Councilor Perreault spoke about an email he received regarding needed road work on Nancy 
Drive, stating that he will pursue it in this year’s budget. 
 
Councilor Millett said she received a letter from Dennis Sarofeen about train idling near Brooks 
Feed and Farm.  Chair Pols also commented about the letter. 
 
Council Committee Updates: 
 
Councilor Richardson thanked Dan Devereaux and Steve Walker for their work on the 
application to the BDC for the quahog study. 



Town Council Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
Chair Pols made the following committee appointments: 
 

 Councilor Perreault and Councilor Millett to the Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street 
Master Plan Implementation Committee 

 Councilor Walker to the Recycling and Sustainability Committee 
 Councilor Watson and Councilor Favreau to the MRRA Community Advisory Group 

 
Adjustments to the Agenda:   None 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Financial Update 
 
Fran Smith gave this update. 
 
Chair Pols spoke about a pending bill in the legislature that would affect revenue sharing. 
 
(b) Permission to allow the Marine Resource Committee the authority to open and 

close coastal waters  
 
Fran Smith and Chair Pols explained this item. 
 
Councilor Wilson moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to authorize the Marine Resource 
Committee to open and close coastal waters per Chapter 11, Marine Activities Structures 
and Ways, Section 11-161 Opening and Closing of Coastal Waters. 
 
Councilor Perreault asked a question, to which Dan Devereaux responded. 
 
Councilor Walker spoke about a related item upcoming in the legislature, LD 1452, and 
thanked Dan Devereaux for his work on this. 
 
Vote on the motion: 
Councilor Wilson moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to authorize the Marine Resource 
Committee to open and close coastal waters per Chapter 11, Marine Activities Structures 
and Ways, Section 11-161 Opening and Closing of Coastal Waters.  The motion carried 
with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of a memo from Dan Devereaux will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(c) Acceptance of a BDC grant for the Marine Resource Committee  
 
Ms. Smith introduced this item. 
 
Dan Devereaux explained the issues the town is facing. 
 
Chair Pols asked a question, to which Dan Devereaux responded. 



Town Council Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 3 
 
 
Councilor Wilson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to accept and expend a grant 
from the Brunswick Development Corporation in the amount of $25,000 to be used to 
fund a marine resource study of quahog populations.  The motion carried with nine (9) 
yeas. 
 
(A copy of a letter from the BDC will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(d) Reminder of Dog License renewals 
 
Ms. Smith gave this reminder. 
 
(e) Discussion of workshop schedule 
 
Ms. Smith announced two upcoming workshops, the first on February 10th   covering two 
subjects, the Cooks Corner connector road and the Town Manager search, and a workshop on a 
possible revaluation, no date having been set at this point. 
 
Chair Pols, Councilor Perreault, and Councilor Walker also spoke about the workshops. 
 
(f) Discussion of the development of the 2014-15 Municipal Budget 
 
Ms. Smith announced that Finance Director John Eldridge would take the lead on budget 
preparation to provide an easier transition, as the Town Manager will be leaving prior to budget 
adoption. 
 
(g) Discussion of PretiFlaherty’s fee structure to provide legal services to the Town 
 
Chair Pols reviewed the options. 
 
Councilor Favreau, Councilor Millett, Councilor Richardson, and Councilor Perreault asked 
questions and made recommendations. 
 
Chair Pols introduced the new Town Attorney, Steve Langsdorf, who made brief comments. 
 
(A copy of the financial options of PretiFlaherty’s proposal for legal services will be attached 
the official minutes.) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
4. The Town Council will hear public comments on a special amusement license 

application, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 

Special Amusement 
Brunswick Lodge of Elks #2043 
D/B/A: Brunswick Lodge of Elks    Ms. Angela Brackett 
179 Park Row 

 



Town Council Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 4 
 
Chair Pols opened the public hearing.  Hearing no comments, he closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve a special amusement 
license application for the Brunswick Lodge of Elks #2043.  The motion carried with nine 
(9) yeas. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
5. The Town Council will hear an update from MaineDOT on the re-routing of Route 

24 and the creation of a Business Route 24 along Main Street and Elm Street in 
Topsham and Maine Street and Bath Road in Brunswick, as recommended in the 
Route 24 Corridor Study completed by the Midcoast Council of Governments, and 
will determine if any future action is necessary. (Manager) 

 
Chair Pols introduced this item. 
 
Peter Coughlan, MDOT, made a presentation. 
 
Councilor Millet made comments, to which Mr. Coughlan and Margo Knight, a member of 
the advisory committee, responded. 
 
Councilor Watson, Chair Pols, Councilor Wilson, and Councilor Favreau spoke on this item, 
with Mr. Coughlan responding to their comments. 
 
(A memo from the Director of Planning and Development and a map are attached to the 
official minutes.) 
 
6. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for February 3, 2014, on 

Zoning Ordinance amendments relative to the Village Review Board membership, 
and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

 
Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and Development, explained this item. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to set a public hearing for 
February 3, 2014, on Zoning Ordinance amendments relative to the Village Review Board 
membership.   
 
Councilor Walker, Councilor Favreau, and Councilor Millett asked questions, to which Ms. 
Breinich responded. 
 
Vote on motion: 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to set a public hearing for 
February 3, 2014, on Zoning Ordinance amendments relative to the Village Review Board 
membership. The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A memo from the Director of Planning and Development will be attached to the official 
minutes.) 
 



Town Council Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 5 
 
7. The Town Council will consider the “Resolution authorizing the Town Treasurer 

to waive foreclosure on certain real estate tax lien mortgages,” and will take any 
appropriate action. (Manager) 

 
Chair Pols explained this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adopt the “Resolution 
authorizing the Town Treasurer to waive foreclosure on certain real estate tax lien 
mortgages.”   The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
8. The Town Council will discuss the process for hiring a new Town Manager, and 

will determine if any future action is necessary. (Chair Pols and Councilor 
Brayman) 

 
Chair Pols initiated the discussion, calling for comments on the Town Manager job description. 
 
Councilor Wilson, Councilor Richardson, Councilor Favreau, Councilor Millett, and Councilor 
Watson spoke on this item. 
 
This subject will be a topic at a Council workshop on February 10, 2014. 
 
(A copy of a memo from the Town Clerk, the current Town Manager job description, and 
municipal manager recruitment survey results will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
9. (ADDED) The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards 

and Committees, and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
 
Councilor Favreau nominated Soxna Dice and Margaret Wilson to the Planning Board. 
 
Councilor Perreault nominated Sande Updegraph to the Planning Board. 
 
The Council voted nine (9) yeas for Margaret Wilson and (6) yeas for Soxna Dice. 
 
Margaret Wilson and Doxna Dice were appointed to the Planning Board. 
 
Councilor Favreau nominated the following: 
 
Robert Broderick to the Cable TV Advisory Committee 
John Lemont and Mark Latti to the Marine Resource Committee 
James Merritt and Charles Updegraph to the Personnel Board 
Constance Lundquist and Karen Topp to the Village Review Board 
 
The Council voted nine (9) yeas to appoint the nominees. 
  



Town Council Minutes 
January 21, 2014 
Page 6 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of December 16, 2013 
b) Approval of the Minutes of January 6, 2014 
c) Approval of the Minutes of January 13, 2014 
d) Approval of Quitclaim Deed for property located at Map U06 Lot 028 Sub 000 Typ 

000 
 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to approve the consent 
agenda. The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the quit claim deed for CA-d will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adjourn the meeting. The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:43 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 
 
Elin M. Gould 
Deputy Town Clerk 
January 22, 2014 
 

February 3, 2014 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 
 

 
 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
December 23, 2013 

Special Meeting 
3:00 P.M.  

Hawthorne School 
2nd Floor Meeting Room 

46 Federal Street 
 
Councilors Present: Chair Suzan Wilson, W. David Watson, Benjamin J. Tucker, John M. 

Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Margo H. Knight, Sarah E. Brayman, and 
Benet Pols 

 
Councilors Absent: Councilor John Richardson Jr. 
 
Town Staff Present: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
Chair Wilson called the meeting to order.  
 
Executive Session for a Consultation with Town Attorney regarding the legal rights and 
responsibilities of the Council per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E). 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Pols seconded, to go into Executive Session for a 
consultation with the Town Attorney regarding the legal rights and responsibilities of the 
Council per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E).  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
The Town Council came out of executive session and action occurred.   
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Knight seconded, to accept the resignation of Town 
Manager Gary Brown, effective on or before March 31, 2014, and to authorize Ms. Wilson 
to act on the Council’s behalf on all transitional matters prior to Manager Brown’s 
departure.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
Please Note:  There is no video recording of this meeting. 
 
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
January 15, 2014 
 

January 21, 2014 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 


	Binder1.pdf
	mr a yes
	mr b yes
	mr b publc art_20140129121655
	mr c no
	mr d yes
	mr d DRAFT _TC_KFP_012914
	mr d KFP_restoration
	mr e yes
	mr e January 29  2014 update
	mr e CP spreadsheet - B Town Hall 140128
	mr e Pages from Agenda Packet - December 16, 2013

	10 yes
	10 NEW Memo for VRZ 2014 amendment PH
	January 30, 2014
	Memo to: Brunswick Town Council
	Gary Brown, Town Manager
	From:  Anna Breinich, AICP
	Subject: Public Hearing for Proposed Amendment to Brunswick Zoning Ordinance, Section 216, Village Review Zone

	10 NEW VRZ Section 216 for PB PH
	11 yes
	11 Memo to Council Regarding Aquatic Survey Results 012914
	11 Aquatic Feasibility Study 2 TC Resolution (2)
	12 yes
	12 MRRA MIIA CDBG LOI Memo _DRAFT 1-28-2014_
	13 yes
	13 DRAFT _TC_LMF_012914
	13 CELCP_aerial
	13 CELCP_location map
	14 yes
	14 rab_20140129095309
	15 no
	ca a yes
	ca a Jan 21 2014 min
	ca b yes
	ca b Dec 23 special min



